
September 10, 2014 Toledo Planning Commission Page 1 

Toledo City Hall 
Council Chambers 

September 10, 2014 
 

TOLEDO PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
 
A regular meeting of the Toledo Planning Commission was called to order at 7:03 pm by 
President Jerry Seth.  Commissioners present:  Julie Rockwell, Anne Learned-Ellis, and Doug 
Alldridge.  Excused were Paul Schneidecker, Mary Young, and Paul Johnson. 
 
Staff present:  City Manager (CM) Jay Baughman, City Attorney (CA) Wes Chadwick and 
Secretary Arlene Inukai. 
 
VISITORS:  Crystal Poling, Zoe Poling, and Billie Jo Smith 
 
President Seth voiced appreciation serving on the Planning Commission.  The work has been 
meaningful and he knows the Commissioners saved the City a lot on the Transportation System 
Plan, even though it was a frustrating exercise and process, it is well worth the effort.  The 
Planning Commission should be commended. 
 
New City Manager Jay Baughman was introduced to Commissioners. 
 
WORKSESSION:  ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT TO DEFINE MEDICAL 
MARIJUANA DISPENSARY FACILITIES AND AMEND THE COMMERCIAL ZONE, 
LIGHT-INDUSTRIAL ZONE, AND HOME OCCUPATION SECTIONS: 
CA Chadwick reported that only one draft ordinance was included in the Commission’s packet—
an amendment to the zoning ordinance for medical marijuana dispensaries (Ordinance 1357).  The 
second ordinance, which was handed out tonight, would set the policies for obtaining a business 
license (Ordinance 1356) to operate a medical marijuana dispensary. 
 
CA Chadwick stated visitor Crystal Poling, representing Crystal Gardens, was present and he 
believes she has comments for the topic. 
 
Ms. Poling reported she owns Crystal Gardens and she read a statement into record.  She 
recommended not passing the zoning ordinance amendment.  She agrees with protecting health 
and safety, but does not agree with passing an emergency clause.  She wished that the City would 
have established a moratorium for the use earlier in the year, which would’ve allowed time to deal 
with the issue.  She believes Ordinance 1357 is unreasonable because the State (OHA) has 
established rules for the medical marijuana program.  If the zoning ordinance amendment passes, 
she will fight the City to uphold what has already been legally established.  She is opposed to the 
conditional use permit requirement because it is unfair, especially given the other types of 
businesses that can operate on Main Street.  If the ordinance also requires bars/taverns to obtain a 
conditional use permit, then she could understand the proposal.  She said her use would be similar 
to a pharmacy operation.  She voiced that this is an important issue and is thankful for the Main 
Street community.  She hopes to protect the community from harm and disturbing the peace.  She 
added that recreational marijuana use could pass in November. 
 
Ms. Poling said she has tried and will continue to try to work with the City on the proposed use.  



September 10, 2014 Toledo Planning Commission Page 2 

The City’s zoning laws do not deal with the use.  Ms. Poling stated that the draft ordinance does 
not have legal standing and she feels she has no choice but to fight Ordinance 1356.  She believes 
the City does not want to work with her and is standing in the way of patient rights.  Some say that 
the use may be offensive, but bars and alcohol use could also be offensive.  She said that she will 
not promote anything but medical purposes, nor does she have the need to advertise, but the 
proposed business license ordinance singles out her business.  She said she is sympathetic with the 
amount of drug use in the area, but the elderly, diseased, and sick need to feel safe.  
 
Ms. Poling asked for Commissioners to educate themselves on the topic and redraft Ordinance 
1356 to compare it with the State’s regulations.  Based on the requirements, 13 cameras would be 
necessary for surveillance.  She urged that the ordinance not be passed, to review the existing State 
laws, and to watch the documentary located on her business website.  She sympathized with the 
zoning issues at other areas in town, but asked that Ordinance 1356 not be adopted. 
 
Commissioner Alldridge stated he likes to hear everyone’s opinions/concerns and to have a 
discussion, but he noted that the Planning Commissioners have only seen Ordinance 1356 tonight.  
Ordinance 1357 was the only one included in the packet and he was unaware that this topic was 
upcoming.  Commissioner Learned-Ellis added that she was also unaware of the topic because the 
Planning Commission and City Council are two separate entities.  It is the Planning Commission’s 
duty to make a recommendation to Council on zoning ordinance amendments, but the Planning 
Commission does not review nor set policy for business licenses.  However, Commissioner 
Learned-Ellis voiced that she would consider a proposal that the use be allowed outright, rather 
than listed as a conditional use permit.  Ms. Poling stated she is a pretty trusting person, but a 
conditional use permit would throw a wrench into the entire process.  If Ordinance 1356 is passed, 
why would the conditional use permit be necessary?  Commissioners noted that the City Council 
can pass Ordinance 1356 without Planning Commission review and they can also pass Ordinance 
1357 against a Planning Commission recommendation.  The City Council takes the Commission’s 
input into consideration, but is not bound by the recommendation. 
 
Ms. Poling asked for the purpose of the Planning Commission.  CA Chadwick clarified that the 
Planning Commission makes decisions on land use actions, such as variances and land division.  A 
zoning ordinance amendment goes before the Planning Commission so they can make a 
recommendation on zoning code changes.  CA Chadwick explained that proposed Ordinance 1357 
would amend the zoning code for the Commercial and Light-Industrial Zones to allow a medical 
marijuana facility as a conditional use in both zones.  Ms. Poling asked for the purpose of the 
amendment and who made the proposal.  She stated that she is very emotional because people on 
Main Street have yelled at her and people have asked her to attend tonight. 
 
Commissioner Learned-Ellis stated she has nothing against the proposed use, but she urged Ms. 
Poling to discuss the issue and to not argue.  She again stated that the Planning Commissioners did 
not know this was coming before them, so it is a brand new topic.  Typically, conditional use 
permits consider impacts to the surrounding neighborhood and community.  Ms. Poling asked why 
this is the first time Planning Commissioner have seen the draft?  Commissioner Learned-Ellis 
replied that the draft zoning ordinance amendment was on the agenda as a discussion item tonight 
and the draft amendment was included in their packet, which arrived last Friday.  Commissioners 
have had since Friday to review the zoning ordinance amendment ordinance, even though the item 
has been reviewed at the City Council level.  President Seth reported that he was aware that the 
item would be coming to the Planning Commission because he attends the City Council meetings.  



September 10, 2014 Toledo Planning Commission Page 3 

Commissioner Learned-Ellis explained that it is not unusual for the Planning Commission to not 
see/hear everything at the City Council level.  It is also beneficial for Planning Commissioners to 
stay unbiased in order to reach a fair decision.  The Commission looks at the request to determine 
if it meets criteria and then makes a recommendation.  Commission Learned-Ellis added that 
requirements from the State will be important during the public hearing review and the 
Commission will need time to review all of the information before the hearing. 
 
Ms. Poling stated she has been into City Hall multiple times to get answers and believes this issue 
has been decided by the “good-old-boy backroom drafts” and by people who do not know what’s 
going on.  She has been treating people for cancer and has a lot of patients.  She argued that all of 
the State regulations are already covered and if a conditional use permit is required, it will mess 
things up this November.  She reiterated that the City should have had a moratorium in place. 
 
Ms. Poling continued to argue that the conditional use process would be too restrictive, due to the 
timing and that it goes above and beyond what is already required at the State level.  She went on 
to say that she wanted to talk about this issue with the Mayor, but he does not have office hours at 
City Hall, so she attended a City Council meeting to ask questions about the ordinances.  She said 
that, at the end of the meeting, the Mayor said her business license would be denied.  The City 
‘holds all the cards’ and if a conditional use permit is needed, then even more conditions are 
added.  President Seth urged Ms. Poling to control her anger and confrontational manner.  He said 
that the code sets limits on the type of conditions that can be placed on all conditional use permits.  
Ms. Poling stated that when she left Main Street, she thought she trusted the City, but when she 
got home, her husband told her something different. 
 
At this time, President Seth gaveled Ms. Poling to stop her rants and outbursts.  Ms. Poling 
continued on, stating that with both ordinances in place together, it would essentially ban the use.  
She wants to stand up for her patients and for patient rights.  President Seth stated that the 
Commission has given Ms. Poling enough time and she continues in a hostile demeanor.  Ms. 
Poling continued to argue, saying that she is standing up for her daughter, that the City is not 
looking out for the people, everyone is against her, and come November, there will be no reason 
for medical dispensaries.  She added that people should thank her for her stance.  Ms. Poling then 
left the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Rockwell expressed that she felt blind-sighted tonight because they haven’t had a 
chance to discuss the topic nor have any information on the subject.  Commissioner Learned-Ellis 
questioned why Ms. Poling is so emotional. 
 
CA Chadwick reported that when the Senate bill passed, regulations were established for medical 
marijuana dispensaries.  The bill allowed cities/counties to have the authority to place regulations 
on the time/place/manner of the use or to establish a moratorium.  If a moratorium was 
established, the ordinance had to be adopted before May 1st.  In April, the City Council considered 
the new use and if they wanted to adopt a moratorium. 
 
At this point, Ms. Poling entered the meeting again and introduced her husband and three children.  
She said they want to see something good to move forward.  They then left the meeting.  
 
CA Chadwick stated that the City Council discussed the option of adopting a moratorium or 
establishing a regulating ordinance (time/place/manner) during their April worksession.  At that 



September 10, 2014 Toledo Planning Commission Page 4 

time, the City Council wanted to begin the regulating ordinance, rather than set a moratorium to 
wait one year.  Council directed him to draft an ordinance and he and Police Chief Enyeart 
attended a conference to obtain additional information.  A draft ordinance was presented to the 
City Council in a June worksession.  That draft contained a lot of regulations, which the Council 
chose to remove several items.  The revisions came back to the Council during a July worksession.  
In July, the Council was comfortable with the draft and asked to begin the public hearing process.  
CA Chadwick explained that because the proposal amends the zoning ordinance’s Commercial 
Zone and Light-Industrial Zone, notice must be sent to DLCD 45 days before the first public 
hearing.  This was also the reason to separate out the item into two ordinances—one for the zoning 
ordinance amendment and the second for the business license requirement.  Proposed Ordinance 
1357 would add the facilities as a conditional use in the Commercial and Light-Industrial Zone 
and prohibit the use as a home occupation.  In November, voters will get a chance to decide on 
recreational marijuana use and if that measure passes, the City may want to revisit the ordinances. 
 
Commissioner Learned-Ellis stated that she is uncomfortable with declaring an emergency for 
ordinances and asked why it was necessary.  CA Chadwick explained that the term must be used 
for the ordinance to go into effect immediately, otherwise, the ordinance goes into effect 30 days 
after it passes.  It would be good to have this ordinance in place sooner, rather than later, so 
potential facilities can be located in Toledo. 
 
CA Chadwick explained that he met with Ms. Poling and explained how to open her business.  
There are State regulations she would have to meet and her registration would first go to the State 
for approval, which is the $4000 permit fee.  If the State approves the permit, then she will be 
required to come into the City to get a business license.  At this time, she operates an herbal 
business, located outside of Toledo, called Crystal Gardens.  Her intent is to open a medical 
marijuana dispensary on Main Street, but would like to have separate spaces for each business— 
herbal treatments and one for medical marijuana.  Commissioner Learned-Ellis asked why a 
conditional use permit would be a problem.  Commissioner Rockwell added that any conditions 
placed on a conditional use permit must be reasonable and justifiable.  CA Chadwick noted that 
most conditions of approval deal with parking, landscaping, and items dealing with a specific 
location.  He will be meeting with Ms. Poling tomorrow and will review the conditional use 
process and try to clear up some confusion with conditional approval vs. outright approval.  He 
noted that the business license allows some conditions of approval, but they are different than a 
conditional use permit.  President Seth said that it would be good to have dispensaries as a 
conditional use because of the importance of the site location. 
 
Visitor Billie Jo Smith offered information to Commissioners.  She reported that she sat through 
the last City Council meeting where Ms. Poling spoke about several points.  After the meeting, 
Ms. Smith reviewed the State’s regulations, which are very specific and provide all kinds of 
safeguards.  The question about a moratorium is identified in the State regulations, allowing cities 
time to work on an ordinance if they did not want facilities to open right away.  Once the 
ordinance is in place, cities would then lift the moratorium.  Toledo chose not to adopt a 
moratorium and to only work on an ordinance, which is not ready until November.  The State 
provides some protection, for example if an application is made, but a moratorium is in place, the 
fees can be refunded to the applicant.  Without the moratorium, the business has to meet the 
State’s permit.  All operations will still need a business license.  Ms. Smith could see Ms. Poling’s 
view if the application meets all of the State requirements, then there is still uncertainty at the City 
level.  Ms. Smith reviewed the proposed business license ordinance with the State’s regulations, 



September 10, 2014 Toledo Planning Commission Page 5 

noting that the City would include several items beyond what the State requires.  She provide a 
couple of examples, in that Section 10 on advertising/labeling goes against the State’s definition 
which says medical marijuana has curative/therapeutic effects.  She questioned why limit the 
labeling if the State does not?  Also, this restricts a lot of items or suppliers.  The other item Ms. 
Smith heard Ms. Poling mention at the Council meeting had to do with Section 8 which sets a 
transaction fee.  No other stores in Toledo requires a transaction fee, nor does the State require a 
transaction fee.  Commissioner Rockwell also pointed out that the fees must be sent out on the 
first business day of each month for the previous month.  Ms. Smith asked if the City has a line 
item to receipt the fees and have a budget for enforcement/public health/education where the fee 
would be applied.  CA Chadwick explained that the Police Chief feels there would be an increased 
level of crime with the use, either against the business or against the customers.  He reiterated that 
there is no State tax, but several cities have debated the option of a fee or tax, several choosing to 
adopt one.  Ms. Smith noted that recreational marijuana is on the ballot in November and that fees 
for this use should be considered, along with other potential issues arising from the recreational 
side.  However, she would question fees for medical purposes.  CA Chadwick noted that 
Washington established a sales tax on medicinal marijuana, but he is not sure of the rate.  
Commissioner Rockwell noted that other prescription drugs do not have a fee, yet could be more 
addictive.  CA Chadwick noted that a dispensary would require additional enforcement.  Both 
Colorado and Washington have increased law enforcement.  Discussion was held on what other 
Lincoln County cities are doing for the use.  Commissioners thanked Ms. Smith for the additional 
information and noted it will be beneficial to see the State’s requirements. 
 
Commissioners discussed allowing the use outright, rather than as a conditional use permit.  Also, 
it was reported that the use could not be located within 1000’ of a school or another dispensary.  
Commissioners reviewed a map showing the school boundaries and it was noted that because of 
the boundaries and zone districts, only two or three dispensaries could be allowed in Toledo.  CA 
Chadwick added that Ms. Poling seems to be very responsible and he encouraged her to get 
approval for the Main Street location.  President Seth reported that Ms. Poling has misquoted both 
himself and CA Chadwick. 
 
CA Chadwick explained that the conditional use permit will review certain impacts to the area and 
the permit has a higher degree of oversight.  He said that the City Council held three or four 
worksessions to finalize a draft and each meeting was announced in advanced.  The Council felt it 
was important to regulate several items and proposed an additional section to the business license 
chapter.  In fact, earlier drafts had several more restrictions which the Council removed from the 
final versions.  It has been difficult to create an ordinance on a controversial issue.  
Commissioners pointed out that they are not always aware of what’s going on at the Council level. 
 
Commissioners questioned the proposed transaction fee and reasoning behind the proposal.  Some 
mentioned that a percentage tax may be better than a flat fee.  The State has specific taxes for 
several items (such as transient rooms and gas), but does not have a statute for marijuana.  CA 
Chadwick explained some differences between the business license proposal and the State’s 
regulations, for example, additional background checks would be necessary.  The use is more 
extensive than a pharmacy, for example, the industry does not have the same level of quality 
control like pharmaceutical drugs. 
  
CA Chadwick reported the zoning ordinance amendment will be presented in November.  
Commissioner Alldridge questioned why the Light-Industrial Zone is included in the proposal.  



September 10, 2014 Toledo Planning Commission Page 6 

CA Chadwick explained that there are Light-Industrial Zone areas which could be a good fit for 
such a use.  Commissioners pointed out there are other commercial-type uses allowed in the Light-
Industrial Zone with a conditional use permit, such as eating/drinking establishments.  
Commissioner Learned-Ellis voiced that it seemed appropriate.  President Seth suggested the 
school boundary map include private schools, headstart, and the library.  CA Chadwick reviewed 
the number of card holders within Lincoln County.  He added that marijuana is still against federal 
law, but the US Department of Justice will not go after small users. 
 
Commissioner Rockwell questioned if a conditional use permit is necessary, but rather she 
preferred to list it as an outright use in addition to the business license regulations.  Commissioner 
Alldridge and Learned-Ellis stated they would not have a problem listing it as a conditional use.  
Commissioners discussed the proposed business license requirements and they requested a copy of 
the State’s requirements.  CA Chadwick noted they are quite extensive, but can be found in OAR 
333-008-1000 and ORS 475.300.  CM Baughman added that the State would have the most 
oversight for the operation and would have the authority to shut down the operation before the 
City does.  The Police Chief and Fire Chief will also need to inspect the site.   
 
Commissioners discussed Ms. Poling’s concerns and that there are two separate ordinances 
dealing with the use.  CA Chadwick reported a lot of jurisdictions are requiring transaction fees 
and limiting the advertising.  Commissioner Learned-Ellis stated that if marijuana is being 
prescribed for medical reasons, then there must be some curative and therapeutic effect.  The 
Council may need to take another look into the advertising restrictions. 
 
President Seth stated that the Planning Commission’s job seems to be pretty straight forward with 
the zoning ordinance review in November.  Commissioners hope to have a productive meeting, 
with a full group in attendance.  Commissioner Alldridge stated he wished Ms. Poling was present 
to hear their conversation and he asked why she had to be so volatile and could not communicate 
well with the Commission.  All expressed appreciation to hear Ms. Smith’s input and information 
on the topic.  Commissioner Alldridge also appreciated everyone keeping calm during the hostile 
conversation.  CA Chadwick was glad that Ms. Poling was allowed to air her concerns in a public 
forum. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:  CM Baughman reported they are currently looking at options for a new 
City Planner. 
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS:  None. 
 
There being no further business before the Commission, the meeting was adjourned at 9:01 pm. 
 
 
 
___________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary         President 


